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DECISION 


Roland Marti, d/b/a Berryhill Oil Company, violated federal regulations.  

Procedure


The Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint on February 17, 2006.  Marti was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of hearing by certified mail, and the return receipt was filed with this Commission on March 8, 2006.    Marti filed an answer to the complaint on March 31, 2006.    


We convened a hearing on the complaint on September 26, 2006, with Marti appearing by telephone.  Due to the difficulties encountered with the telephone testimony, we rescheduled the hearing for October 24, 2006.  Kim Burton represented the MHTC.  Marti represented himself.  Our reporter filed the transcript on December 14, 2006.  

Findings of Fact


1.  “Berryhill Oil Company” is registered as a fictitious name with the Missouri Secretary of State.  The registration was filed on December 9, 1988, and remained in active status as of June 21, 2006.  Marti is the owner of Berryhill Oil Company (“Berryhill”).  

2.  At all times relevant to the MHTC’s complaint, Berryhill was the owner of a 1992 Kenworth truck.  Berryhill purchased the vehicle on July 24, 1992.   Marti signed the blank for purchaser on the application for title:  “Roland Marti D/B/A Berryhill Oil Co.”  The gross vehicle weight rating for the vehicle was 50,000 pounds.  

3.  Berryhill picked up shipments of fuels from Magellan Pipeline and transported them to its convenience stores and gas stations.  


4.  On January 3, 2005, Berryhill’s driver, James Hall, operated the Kenworth truck.  Berryhill did not have a random alcohol and controlled substances testing program in place.  


5.  On July 1, 2, and 4, 2005, Hall operated the Kenworth truck and did not keep a record of duty status.    


6.  The bill of lading for each of the deliveries on January 3 and July 1, 2, and 4, 2005, listed Berryhill as the cosignee and the carrier.  Marti signed the bill of lading on the January 3, 2005, delivery.  


7.  The bill of lading for each of the deliveries on January 3 and July 1, 2, and 4, 2005, lists the terminal location as Carthage, Missouri, and the destination as Lamar, Missouri.  


7.  The MHTC conducted a compliance review in August 2005.  Marti identified himself to the investigator as the person in charge of Berryhill.  The investigator found that Berryhill transported on an intrastate basis only.  

8.  Berryhill transferred title to the Kenworth truck to Lamarti’s, Inc. (“Lamarti’s”) on April 20, 2006.  Marti signed as the seller and wrote “Owner” next to his signature.  Margaret 
Marti, President, signed on behalf of the corporation as the purchaser.  Lamarti’s was incorporated in 1996.  Marti executed an affidavit stating that he was giving the truck to Lamarti’s as a gift.  
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Marti has violated the law.
 


Marti argues that he retired on January 1, 2000, and that Berryhill has not existed since that date.  Even though Lamarti’s was incorporated in 1996, Marti, d/b/a Berryhill, was still the owner of the Kenworth truck in January and July 2005, and Berryhill’s name appeared on the bills of lading.  As of June 21, 2006, the fictitious name registration for Berryhill had not been cancelled with the Missouri Secretary of State.  In August 2005, Marti was present at the business and identified himself to the MHTC investigator as the person in charge of Berryhill.  The MHTC met its burden to prove that Marti was the owner and operator of the business in January and July 2005, the time of the violations that the MHTC alleges in its complaint.  

Count I:  Violation of 49 CFR § 382.305 (Testing Program)
The MHTC’s complaint asserts that Marti violated 49 CFR § 382.305 on January 3, 2005, by failing to have a random alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program in place.   

The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 382 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle” and “employer”:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds)[.]

*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible 
for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115 provides: 

(a) All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations. 
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.301 provides: 
(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver. 
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.305 provides: 
(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section. Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.
Because the Kenworth truck had a gross vehicle weight rating of 26,001 or more pounds and was used in commerce to transport property, it is a commercial motor vehicle.  Because Hall  was employed as a driver, Marti was an employer as defined in the regulation.

Part 382 of Title 49 CFR establishes the employer’s duty to implement an alcohol or controlled substance testing program.  Because Marti did not have an alcohol or controlled substance testing program in place on or about April 7-8, 2005, he violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a).
  

Count II:  Violation of 49 CFR § 395.8 (Duty Status)

The MHTC asserts that Marti violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) and § 307.400 on July 1, 2, 
and 4, 2005.  49 CFR § 395.8(a) provides:    

Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraphs (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
(1) Every driver who operates a commercial motor vehicle shall record his/her duty status, in duplicate, for each 24-hour period. . . . 
(2) Every driver who operates a commercial motor vehicle shall record his/her duty status by using an automatic on-board recording device that meets the requirements of § 395.15 of this part.  

Section 307.400.1 provides:

It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.

(Emphasis added.)  Section 307.400.1 expressly establishes a violation of state law when a commercial motor vehicle, as defined in 49 CFR Part 390.5, is not equipped and operated as required by 49 CFR Parts 390 through 397.  The definition of “commercial motor vehicle” in 
49 CFR § 390.5 is not the same as the definition of “commercial motor vehicle” in 49 CFR 
§ 382.107, which we have previously discussed.  49 CFR § 390.5 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]
(Emphasis added.)  


There is no evidence that Berryhill used a highway in interstate commerce.  The deliveries at issue in this case were from Carthage, Missouri to Lamar, Missouri.  The investigator found that Berryhill transported in intrastate commerce only.  

Section 390.201, RSMo 2000, provides:  

Subject to any exceptions which are applicable under section 307.400, RSMo, or subsection 6 of section 390.063, the officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations wholly within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle. 

(Emphasis added).  Section 622.550, RSMo 2000, provides:  

Subject to any exceptions which are applicable under section 307.400, RSMo, or subsection 6 of section 390.063, the officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically 
be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle. 

(Emphasis added).  


Sections 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000, unlike § 307.400.1, do not specifically apply to commercial motor vehicles as defined in 49 CFR § 390.5.  Sections 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000, provide that personnel of the Division of Motor Carrier and Railroad Safety may enforce the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of CFR Title 49.  The definition of “commercial motor vehicle” contained in 49 CFR § 390.5 is applicable to 49 CFR § 395.8.  49 CFR § 395.8 is part of 49 CFR Chapter III, Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, Subchapter B, Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations.  49 CFR § 390.5 provides that the definitions therein apply throughout the subchapter, “[u]nless specifically defined elsewhere.”  49 CFR § 390.3(a) provides:  

The rules in Subchapter B of this chapter are applicable to all employers, employees, and commercial motor vehicles, which transport property or passengers in interstate commerce.  


Berryhill’s 1992 Kenworth truck does not fit the definition of “commercial motor vehicle” in 49 CFR § 390.5 because it was not used in interstate commerce.  However, 
§ 307.400.1 provides that vehicles must be equipped and operated as required by 49 CFR Parts 390 through 397, “whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.”  Sections 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000, authorize the MHTC to enforce the provisions of 49 CFR Parts 350 through 399 “as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state[.]”  Remedial statutes are broadly construed to effectuate their purpose.  State ex rel. Webster v. Myers, 779 S.W.2d 286, 290 (Mo. App., W.D. 1989).   
Sections 390.201, 622.250, and 307.400.1 express the legislature’s intent that the MHTC be given broad enforcement authority.  These statutes refer to the federal regulations.  Statutes must be construed to give effect to the legislature's intent and avoid absurd results.  State ex rel. Nixon v. Karpierz, 105 S.W.3d 487, 491 (Mo. banc 2003).  We believe that the legislature intended for the MHTC to have enforcement authority in intrastate commerce for conduct that is proscribed by these federal regulations.

Marti did not keep any records of duty status.  He violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) on the three occasions alleged in the complaint.  

Summary


Marti violated 49 CFR § 382.305 by failing to have an alcohol or controlled substance testing program in place on January 3, 2005.  

Marti violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) by failing to keep records of duty status on July 1, 2, and 4, 2005.   

SO ORDERED on December 22, 2006.



________________________________



TERRY M. JARRETT



Commissioner

	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  Statutory references are to the 2005 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


	�Although the violation was ongoing, our conclusions are limited to the dates set forth in the MHTC’s complaint.  
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